
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 17, 2024 

5:30 P.M. 
SPANISH SPRINGS LIBRARY 

7100A Pyramid Way, Sparks, NV 89436  

Library Trustees 
Gianna Jacks, Chair 

Lea Moser, Vice-Chair 
Al Rogers, Trustee 
Ann Silver, Trustee 
Tami Ruf, Trustee 

Members of the public may attend this meeting in person or can attend by teleconference by logging into 
the Zoom webinar accessible through the following link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84224131597. If 
prompted, use the following passcode: 889408.  Please note: the Zoom link option will require a computer 
or phone with internet access or the Zoom application with audio capabilities.  

Forum Restrictions and Orderly Conduct of Business. The Library Board of Trustees conducts the business 
of the Washoe County Library system and its citizens during its meetings. The orderly, efficient conduct 
of the meeting is integral and necessary to allow the Board to conduct business. The Chair or presiding 
officer may order the removal of any person whose statements or other conduct disrupts the orderly, 
efficient or safe conduct of the meeting. Warnings against disruptive comments or behavior may or may 
not be given prior to removal. Examples of disruptive conduct include, without limitation, yelling, 
stamping of feet, whistles, applause, heckling, name calling, use of profanity, threatening use of physical 
force, or any other acts intended to impede the meeting or infringe on the rights of the Library Board of 
Trustees, staff, or meeting participants.  The viewpoint of a speaker will not be restricted, but reasonable 
restrictions may be imposed upon the time, place, and manner of speech. Irrelevant and unduly 
repetitious statements and personal attacks which antagonize or incite others are examples of speech 
that may be reasonably limited. 

Public Comment.  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment period at the beginning of 
the meeting for all matters, whether listed on the agenda or not.  Additionally, public comment specific 
to the action item being considered will be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Public 
Comment is limited to two (2) minutes per person. Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers.  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or 
off the agenda.  Anyone wishing to provide live public comment may do so in person, or by teleconference 
by logging onto the Zoom webinar by accessing the above link.  To provide public comment via Zoom, log 
into the meeting at the above link and utilize the “Raise Hand” feature during any public comment period.  
Additionally, persons are invited to submit comments in writing by emailing Jamie Hemingway, The 
County will make reasonable efforts to send all email comments received by 4:00 p.m. on the business 
day before the meeting to the Trustees prior to the meeting. 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84224131597


Response to Public Comment. The Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on 
an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment periods, speakers may 
address matters listed or not listed on the published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly 
prohibit responses to public comments by the Board.  However, responses from the Board members to 
unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public.  To 
ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board will consider, Board members may choose not to 
respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Staff action, or to ask that a 
matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board may do this either during the public comment item or 
during the following item: “Board Comment – limited to announcements, strategic plan activity updates, 
or issues proposed for future agendas and/or workshops.”  
 
How to Get Copies of Agendas and Support Documentation. Copies of agendas and supporting 
documentation for items on the agenda are available to members of the public at the Downtown Reno 
Library Administration Office, 301 South Center Street, Reno, Nevada, and may be obtained by contacting 
Jamie Hemingway,  or (775) 327-8341.  Copies of agendas and supporting materials are also posted one 
the following websites: www.washoecountylibrary.us and https://notice.nv.gov.  
 
Special Accommodations.  We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the 
public who are disabled, who need special accommodations or assistance, and wish to attend meetings. 
Should you require special assistance or accommodations for any Board meeting, please contact L J Burton 
at LJBurton@washoecounty.gov or (775) 327-8341, at least 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting. 
 
Possible Changes to Agenda and Timing.  The Library Board of Trustees may take agenda items out of 
order, may consider two or more items in combination, may remove one or more items from the agenda, 
or delay discussion on an item.  Items scheduled to be heard at a specific time will be heard no earlier 
than the stated time but may be heard later.  
 
Posting of Agenda.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020(4)(b), the agenda for the Trustees’ meeting has been posted 
at the following locations: Washoe County Courthouse, Washoe County Administration building, 
Downtown Reno Library, Incline Village Library, North Valleys Library, Northwest Reno Library, Sierra View 
Library, South Valleys Library, Spanish Springs Library, and Sparks Library. Further, in compliance with NRS 
241.010, this notice has been posted on the official website for the Washoe County Library System at 
www.washoecountylibrary.us and at https://notice.nv.gov. 
 
We begin by acknowledging that we gather today on the ancestral homelands of the Waší·šiw (Washoe), 
Numu (Northern Paiute), Newe (Western Shoshone), Nuwu (Southern Paiute), and Pipa Aha (Mojave), the 
original caretakers of the land that we now call Nevada. Washoe County, formally named after the 
Washoe people in 1861, continues to be a gathering place and home for Indigenous Peoples, and we 
recognize their rich history and deep connections to these lands. May we honor their past, present, and 
future stewardship by remembering that the health of the land and its people are inextricably linked. 

LIBRARY ADMINISTRATION 
301 South Center Street | PO Box 2151, Reno NV 89505 

(775) 327-8341 | www.washoecountylibrary.us 

2

http://www.washoecountylibrary.us/


 
 
 
The Board of Trustees may take action only on the items below that are preceded by the words “For 
Possible Action.” The Board will not take action on any other items. 
 

0) Salute to the Flag 
1) Roll Call [Non-Action Item] 

 
2) Public Comment – Two Minute Time Limit Per Person [Non-Action Item] 

No discussion or action by the Board may be taken upon any matter raised under this public 
comment section until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda. 

 
3) Approval of Meeting Minutes 

a)    Approval of Minutes from the Library Board Meeting of January 17, 2024 [For Possible 
Action] 

 
4) Old Business [Non-Action Item] 

         None 
 

5) New Business 
a) National Library Week Proclamation 
b) Review and Possible Revision of Library Board of Trustee Bylaws [For Possible 

Action] 
c) Discussion of Budget Analysis of Drag Queen Story Hour  
d) Discussion and possible recommendation regarding the continuation of Drag Queen 

Story Hour program [For Possible Action] 
e) Appeal of Library Director’s decision regarding book challenges as follows.   

Decisions on appeals should be based on the Collection Development Policy, the 
material, careful review of the objection and the American Library Association’s Bill 
of Rights, Freedom to Read Statement, Freedom to View Statement and Guidelines 
on Intellectual Freedom. [For Possible Action]  

i. Challenge submitted by Sandee Tibbit regarding Gender Queer by Maia 
Kobabe, and Flamer by Mike Curato 

ii. Challenge submitted by Darla Lee regarding Looking for Alaska by John 
Green, and Zenobia July by Lisa Bunker 

iii. Challenge submitted by Mary Graham regarding Elatsoe by Darcie Little 
Badger and Date Me, Bryson Keeler by Kevin van Whye 

iv. Challenge submitted by Bruce Foster regarding All Boys Aren't Blue by 
George M. Johnson 

v. Challenge submitted by Dawn Cooper regarding Heartstopper Volume 3 by 
Alice Oserman 

6) Reports 
a) Library Director Update by Director Jeff Scott [Non-Action Item] 

3



b) Renew Washoe County Libraries Update by Director Jeff Scott [Non-Action Item] 
c) Spanish Springs Library Report by Library Branch Manager Jana MacMillan [Non-Action 

Item] 
7) Staff Announcements [Non-Action Item]  

No discussion or action may be taken upon any matter raised under this comment section until 
the matter has been specifically included on an agenda. 

 
8) Board Comment [Non-Action Item] – Limited to Announcements, Strategic Plan Activity, 

Updates or Issues Proposed for Future Agendas and/or Workshops 
 

9) Adjournment 

 

4



Item 3a  

January 17, 2024 Library Board of Trustees Minutes 

COVER PAGE 

5



LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
DOWNTOWN RENO LIBRARY 

301 S. Center St. 
RENO, NV 89501 

 
Library Trustees 

Gianna Jacks, Chair 
Lea Moser, Trustee 
Al Rogers, Trustee 
Ann Silver, Trustee 

Vacant 
 
 
 

The Board met in regular session in hybrid format via Zoom and in person.    
   

CALL TO ORDER/SALUTE THE FLAG  
Chair Jacks called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the meeting in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
   

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM   
   
Present:     Absent:      None   
Gianna Jacks, Vice-Chair 
Lea Moser  Trustee  (appearing virtually) 
Al Rogers Trustee  
Ann Silver, Trustee  
   
County Staff:   
Jeff Scott Library Director   
Herb Kaplan Deputy District Attorney  
Dave Solaro, Deputy County Manager  
 
 
 

 
1) Public Comment – Three Minute Time Limit Per Person [Non-Action Item] 

No discussion or action by the Board may be taken upon any matter raised under this public 
comment section until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda. 

 
Jesse Ebs 

6



Tons of folks with different backgrounds here attending the meeting and frankly I think this is awesome. 

The difference is what makes the melting pot here tonight and that is what makes our City Great. Where 

our past, however, split is what makes us. I feel we should have the right to read whatever books we 

wish. We have people telling us that we shouldn’t have access to certain literacy. Over 2000 books have 

been banned in the United States largely focusing on the LGBTQ community, people of color, and 

different diverse backgrounds and that is a great disservice to our culture. We lose the ability to start 

accepting our differences with each other and our society. Everyone should have access to read 

whatever they like and be able to express what we feel. 

 
Nadin Jameas 
Here to show support for inclusion programming and books that Jeff Scott has put together to that end I 
also encourage you to acknowledge the funds donated by the Friends of Washoe County. Nonprofit that 
has for decades supported the Washoe County library system. These funds are not paid by taxpayers 
who support inclusive programming. We need to keep these programs it is fundamental to the 
community. Spoke about drag queen story hour and stated the library does not pay a penny for a 
program that brings dozens. The event is posted on the library website and reflects messages of self-
acceptance and love and empathy. Most reactionary groups are threatened by such positive messages 
because they teach our children to be more loving of themselves and others. 
 
Debra Actenburg 
Retired philosophy professor from UNR and Reno resident since 1982. Wanted to thank us for the 

activities on behalf of the community thank the Board and library system. Stated citizens are informed 

and they expand their horizons. Felt she is educated on a wide variety of topics and groups of people. 

Democrat governance requires citizens to know each other including knowing others who are different. 

Thank you for providing resources on racial and gender differences. And holding events on topics and 

training on the topics as well. Drag queen story hour is important that you resist efforts by well finance 

and well organized national and local groups. To cancel to the culture, they disagree with. Which of 

course they are not forced to read any books or attend any events they don’t refer to. Libraries must be 

open sources of information and cultural connection. Thank you for continuing to be such sources and 

not being swayed by groups that would narrow our focus. 

 
Hanna Decatos 
16-year-old volunteer. If I am not reading or volunteering, I post book reviews on my blog and 
Instagram. Reading is her passion. Really appreciate Washoe County library and the staff. Born and 
raised in Reno and is a frequent library visitor. The library is a safe and successful fun place for everyone. 
Part of the library has diverse books. Loves the organized fun family events such as story time. One of 
my favorite things about volunteering is seeing how much little kids enjoy story hour. 
 
Tarra Decatos 
last month was the first time that I had attended a library board meeting. I feel we heard some 

hypothetical concerns about the library from some people. We heard real firstpers9on stories from 

7



library users including myself whose lives have been significantly improved by libraries and improved by 

divers books and by being themselves. Washoe County has the best library staff, the most wonderful 

people working in the library, and we have great books and great programming.  I feel we need to come 

together as a community to support the library so they can continue to do the great work they already 

do. 

 
Gail Townsend 
We have tons of disagreement about what kind you feel is appropriate at the library whether it be books 
or programing. And there are people who do not see eye to eye in the community.  I love and appreciate 
diversity as a fundamental part of this big and wonderful world. You meet all sorts of people, some 
whom understand or identify with some. Reading books is a core about temporarily assuming an 
unfamiliar point of view. We need to broaden our endlessly diverse experiences that has seen in life 
incorporation that knowledge into your own personal growth. 
 
Ilya Arm 
Came back in October to talk about how much fun she got doing ban book the focus was on ban books 
we focused on events like that story hour we miss the larger picture. It’s not just about books, it’s about 
power. The protesters’ aim is to erase everything and everyone they disagree with. They want the 
power to recreate the library in their image. They want to erase the LGBTQ community by suppressing 
ideas they don’t like advance the narrow religious view at the extensive mind and destroy intellectual 
freedom. 
 
Candace Powell 
Parent and proud library card holder been to a few meetings and have heard what other public 
commenters had to say. The uproar of supposed accessibility of pornography in our libraries sounds as if 
there is a shop set up inside our library system.  It is a tale of reasonableness. We need to protect our 
children. My children and I attend the library every week and we have yet to come across anything of 
that sort. My daughter has borrowed and read 62 books over winter break and not even one of the 
books were inappropriate or pornographic. Real concern is teens and kids seeking porn at the library 
and it is just ridiculous. 
 
Janice Jones 
Representative of a large group of people who speak for many in the community. You are familiar with 
artistic grievances, the rationale behind them and the possible solutions we’ve offered. The list of 
grievances includes but are not limited to moving sexually explicit and pornographic reading material to 
adult sections of the library unavailable to small children and drag queen story hour at all Washoe 
libraries. Get control of Director Scott or terminate him and end all association with the American 
Library Association as many states across the nation have done. Possibly you all are paving the way or 
laying the groundwork to implement the solutions we have offered. We can not be sure it just appears 
to be long past the time that taxpayers, voter citizens, and all community members of Washoe County 
should receive the relief they are due from this board of trustees. Agenda Item 5G discussion to review 
director evaluation process I hope that the trustees and chair have had the time and opportunity to 

8



review director Scotts May 2018 evaluation which was not much different than this one. There has not 
been a lot of improvement in the last five years. 
 
Gordon Gossage 
Has submitted an application to become a library board of trustee and gave these words yesterday to 
the County Commissioners. I want to serve on the library board because whether I agree with all elected 
and appointed leaders of all issues I want to do my part to emphasize cooperation rather than conflict. 
As of 2024 we can agree to solve the problem of our library in sun valley and co-create a library 
specializing in Spanish language materials. We can work with the leaders of our rodeo to help create an 
extensive Western Heritage. Our board service should primarily help our Director achieve organization 
goals we should provide a sounding board for ideas provide public support and respond to the director 
whenever. Ask the timely performing contributions of high quality. I have specific experience managing 
librarians. 
Paul Larson 
Hard to begin on this issue but I think we all agree that kids are precious to all of us. Every one of us 
were a kid at one time we were passing the baton down from generation to generation we want them 
to come to childhood and the one thing we do not want is the grooming of children in any way we know 
how psychologically damaging it is and there is a lifelong impact in that. Sexualization of children is 
absolutely off the table. We have reasonable restrictions on voting ages, access to alcohol, tabacco 
products, R rated materials. Lots of restrictions on what it age appropriate and what is not. And what 
adults choose to do in the bedroom is their business but hands off the kids. Please allow them to 
maintain their childhood. 
 
Chris Daniels 
I am Ginger Devine one of the drag queens that regularly read at drag queen story hour the thing I 
wanted to speak on most today is a unique perspective because I in the room with librarians and 
parents and children am seeing first hand the joy and beauty of these events. The things I hear about 
having to protect children from bubble parties because we always start drag queen story hour with 
bubble machines going off in the room and some nice curated playlist with children music and then the 
librarians actually lead the songs. The librarians then welcome the children to story hour and then I read 
two to three stories about a unicorn having a bad day about a child getting into some glitter everywhere 
and then they want more glitter and then a cat is in the glitter these are the stories being read to these 
children. During story hour I also speak to the families who attend and the lines go out the door of 
children and parents with smiles and who are joyful. They speak to me about family members who are 
no longer around because they didn’t feel loved or accepted and wisht there were events like this when 
they were young. They are excited to take a picture with a drag queen and do arts and crafts with the 
center or amazing library staff. 
 
Cate Salem 
Wanted to thank Jeff Scott for the work he is doing for the libraries. We have so many beautiful libraries 

in this County going all the way to Incline Village. They are amazing along with the staff the services to 

this community is huge. From books to making videos available and even to allow voting in the libraries 

is an incredible service for out community and am grateful. Attended the last meeting and heard when 

9



people would derive when comments were made concerning banning of books, they said they were not 

trying to ban books. Is grateful that the board takes time to come and listen to everyone and pay 

attention to everyone not being on the phone while we are talking that is awesome. You have a tough 

job it is not easy and trying to remember that this is a public library with emphasis on the public. 

Everyone deserves to have access to the library. 

 
Amanda Molholland 
Always grateful that everyone is able to share opinions openly and freely. Its one of the reasons she 

loves the library. Would like to express support for the events they are about fostering my love for 

reading and promoting inclusivity and celebrating diversity in a time of increase in literacy. As a former 

educator these are reasons to get children involved in more literacy. The library does provide a safe and 

welcoming space for families of all backgrounds. They can all come together and enjoy stories told by 

talented readers. These events offer an opportunity for children to learn about different perspectives, 

develop empathy, and embrace the beauty of individuality. Drag queen story hour contributes more 

inclusive contributes to a more inclusive society where everyone is valued and respected. Let us 

celebrate the power of storytelling and the joy it brings to children and families regardless of gender 

identity or expression.    

 
Holly Carter 
Former educator and lifelong library patron. Quick shout out to my mom for being a wonderful and 

intelligent mother who felt the love of books and the library for me. I love libraries and this is one of the 

few spaces people of all backgrounds can or at least should be able to enjoy freely and respectfully. 

Books have a great way of expanding world views leading that charge especially as young adult books. 

This year I was able to read books about love, about main characters with a physical disability, and 

books with main characters that are not all white citizens and straight. Its exciting since I did not get any 

of that when I was a kid so seeing that this is popular now is great. Supports the drag queen story hour. 

 
Maggie Bab 
A library user, reader, and educator here in the community. Wanted to speak in support of the efforts to 

be inclusive and incorporate diverse perspectives. To be able to go through the shelves and find books 

that are not separate because that in not equal and in the programming. The library is a vital resource 

and appreciate the efforts to nurture that in our community. I hope to see you continue and also look 

forward to engaging as we go through finding another Trustee. 

 

Ryan Ma 
Wanted to voice her opinion to pornographic materials being in areas accessible to children. She is not 

suggesting the literature be banned from the library only that they are not available to children. I am a 

woman that does not want to be silenced I have written educational materials addressing inclusivity and 

10



cultural confidence that is not what this is about our children are our future and it is my opinion that 

their young brains should not be subjected to such materials. 

 
Bruce Parks 
Same thing Janice Jones said. 
Bruce Foster Would like to let all the librarians know and all whom attended the meeting that the library 
has so much to offer in all kinds of different programs and outreach. We the people have a bit of an 
issue with one part of this area which was introduced by the Director of libraries. I am not sure if you 
read my emails but I just wish to encourage you to move all sexual explicit books to a designated adult 
section.  We do not want to ban books we just need to get them away from the innocents and wish the 
books that highlight the LBTQ trans ideology as well as drag queen story is harmful to the innocence 
culture has shifted over the years in a harmful way. We are now required to tolerate, accept, and 
participate in and celebrate this. Also expressed concern over the ideology at the National American 
library association conference that is happening this month in Baltimore, and it highlights this 
community as well. Emily Drabinski president of the ALA is a lesbian.   
 
Roger Edwards 
Father of three and grandfather of five great grandfather of two and a lover of the library. Memory of 

the library is going up and down the isles with my five-year-old and her dragging her finger along all the 

books and her awe of the overwhelming volumes from aisle to aisle back then we did not have to worry 

about some homosexual dressed up as a woman parading up and down in front of our children. 

Grooming them for illicit actions. These actions do not belong in a public library with children. 

 
Alan Munson 
Resident and library card holder and voting citizen who is not threatening anybody and not asking for 
any books to be banned what I am asking is that them books that have sexuality be placed in a spot not 
where children are. None of the children should be exposed to Sex at that early age. 
 
Scott Finley 
Washoe County resident with a military background in the financial management of the United States 
Air Force the Washoe County library board of trustees must eliminate fiscal responsibility and hold 
library director Jeff Scott accountable for his actions or lack thereof agenda item 5E seeks to review the 
costs associated with drag queen story which the director shall ensure the supporting materials 
pertinent to this agenda item are made available to trustees, Board, legal counsel and the public in 
accordance with NRS 241.  The only material provided is an email sent by Director Jeff Scott to the 
library board of trustees stating that the five drag queen story hour during summer 2023 cost the library 
0 dollars and that is partnership with our center support for volunteers and financial support of $2,620. 
The summer event actually cost the library $2,620 dollars but these costs were offset by its partnership 
with our center providing the support for volunteers and financial support. Where is the supporting 
materials that breaks down the cost accrued by the five drag queen story hours during the summer 
2023. Even an itemized summary would be helpful to show the library board of trustees whether or not 
any additional expenses were incurred or overlooked by the director Jeff Scott. 
 

11



Kylie Ball 
15-year-old who really didn’t want to speak but after hearing all the opinions of everyone she decided to 

show her opinion as well. There are some main issues the people have brought up tonight, one is 

sexuality books, and the other is from the story hour. The first one is pornography in books. I read quiet 

a lot mainly young adult books and most of them have overly sexual themes and most of them have not 

been marked as overly sexual they have been labeled as a romance but its something we can consider a 

sweet teen romance but it quickly devolves into something kind of sexual I do not want to be subjected 

to and I know that a lot of my friends are asexual as well and it something they are comfortable with. 

Everybody who is here for diversity is completely ignoring a big part of the community. Drag queen story 

hour many of us were focused on the benefits of diversity and I do not deny that I do not deny that this 

is a good thing as a Asian woman I am grateful for being accepted in this society however, things like 

drag queen story hour shows direct comparison to princesses is taking away female representation. 

 
Gregory Wonderland 
Local author who spent most of his life reading and creating stories. Decided to speak after hearing 

people say they don’t want to ban books but to move them away to hide them in a corner where they 

are not accessible. In a public library everything is accessible. As persons of power, you have the ability 

to make decisions and every decision made to squirrel knowledge away to hide anything has a long 

definitive impact. Worried about teaching children the wrong things, teaching them that you should 

hide knowledge and not educate them about that knowledge is the wrong decision.   

 

 
 
William Putchert 
Heard a lot of discussion regarding children tonight and it made me think of Sir David Bowie who I am 
wearing his shirt tonight may consider to be drag queen and there is a lyric from his song changes that I 
think is appropriate. It says these children that we spit on as we try to change their world they are 
immune to your consultation they are quite aware. 
 
Nichell Hull (virtual) 
Director of wake-up Washoe County. Want to echo the numerous previously stated sentiments tonight, 

especially Janice Jones earlier. The majority of the public comment going back nearly five years now has 

been to say that most traditional Americans most traditional family people do not want their library to 

be an adult bookstore. They do not want their library to be a drag show for their innocent kids they 

want the kids to be kids they want their children to have a safe space. They want a maintained standard 

of age-appropriate material in our libraries and unfortunately it was Mr. Scott who indicated the bazar 

program drag queen preschool story hour in 2019 and weather the American Library Association 

recommended that program or not is material. A professional association just gives you guidance, gives 

12



ideas and opportunities for advancement. They are not the decision maker for a local organization, that 

was Scott’s decision. 

 
December (Virtual) 
Echo the majority support tonight for the libraries diverse and inclusive offerings the library is a public 

service for everyone, so it has books for everyone including Renos thriving queer community. I am sorry 

if this offends certain groups, I invite you to use your critical thinking skills to wonder why am I upset 

when I believe the library should cater exclusively to me and my beliefs if you claim that you must 

control the freedom of information to protect the children as a history lover I am obliged to tell you this 

is a common fascist talking point. Grateful to have a library system that sees past the charade and 

supports our freedom to read. 

 
Victoria Myer (Virtual) 
Some of the comments regarding kids having access to porn on the phones or anywhere is not a good 

reason to have on the library shelves. Previous speaker is incorrect we did spend the summer 

documenting by call number all the books and what the contents are and the Board members have 

heard them and seen the copies of the books. The petition going around says no more sexually explicit 

books accessible to children. This is just common sense. These books are not somehow educational, and 

children do not need to learn about fisting and anal sex and masturbating. I don’t care if heterosexual or 

homosexual children’s minds need to be protected. This is getting to ridiculous proportions I am holding 

up to the camera the petition that has been circulating with over 1200 verifiable Washoe County 

residents who have signed the petition. We are tired of this argument it is time to make a move and a 

change and restrict these books. 

 
Bri Schmidt (Virtual) 
Program associate with Silver State equality a civil rights LGBTQ plus organization statewide for Nevada. 

Would like to clarify for the trustees that I know you have to listen and deal with a lot on this topic, so I 

appreciate your care and taking care of the library. I know a ton of people have shared what books they 

would like to have removed or put in a sperate section and regardless of opinions on the contents of 

those books most of the books brought up are already filed in the adult nonfiction section. 

 
 
Chair Jacks changed the order of the agenda as follows: 

5a Acknowledge $80,000 Donation from Friends of Washoe County Library; $50,000 Donation 
for South Valleys Library; $139,117 Donation for Sierra View Library by Louis Nowak [For Possible 
Action] 
 
Jamie Hemingway introduced Friends of Washoe County Library and thanking them for their 
donation.  
Move to acknowledge by Trustee Silver 

13



Seconded by Trustee Rogers 
Vote in Favor was Unanimous  
 
3a Approval of Minutes from the Library Board Meeting of December 20th , 2023 [For Possible 
Action] 
Board comments.  
Trustee Rogers commented on an error at the end of the December 20th minutes stating that 
Trustee Silver’s motion was not a separate motion to acknowledge the Library Director’s 
Evaluation.  
 
Trustee Silver inquired as to the length of time it takes to complete the minutes. Director Scott 
replied it takes 30 hours to complete with the verbatim public comment minutes.  
 
Chair Jacks stated her displeasure in the quality of the minutes and that they are completed by 
library staff. She also stated the library chambers are inadequate and she will not approve the 
minutes.  
 
Trustee Rogers clarified his comments on the minutes that there was an error on the action item 
at the end of the Director’s Evaluation item. 
 
Trustee Rogers Moved to approve the minutes. Trustee Moser Seconded the motion.  
 
Public Comment: 
Bruce Parks commented that the minutes were not put before the public with sufficient time 
according to Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
Valerie Fiannaca expressed her displeasure over the accuracy of the minutes.  
 
Board Comment: 
Trustee Rogers inquired from DA Kaplan as to the requirement for the verbatim public 
comment. DA Kaplan replied there is no requirement to record the minutes verbatim.  
 
Chair Jacks further expressed her displeasure regarding the minutes.  
 
Board Vote:  
YES     No   
Trustee Moser   Chair Jacks 
Trustee Silver 
Trustee Rogers 
 
5c Election of Vice-Chair for Library Board of Trustees [For Possible Action]   
 
Chair Jacks nominated Trustee Moser for Vice Chair. Trustee Silver Seconds the Motion. 
 

14



Chair Jacks that Trustee Moser has been one of the longest serving members on the board. 
Trustee Moser commented that she has the most time on the board and with her work 
experience can provide guidance for future reports. 
 
 Public Comment:  
Bruce Parks supported Trustee Moser for Vice Chair 
 
Board Vote 
Vice Chair Moser is elected unanimously. 
 
 
5e Review Costs of Drag Queen Story Hour [Non-Action Item] 
 
Director Scott shared his report on Drag Story Hour. 
Trustee Rogers inquired about how programs like this come about. Does the library perform 
Activity Based Costing to determine value of programs.  
Director Scott replied that most of the library programs are developed by the Youth Services and 
Library Events Team who have a process to determine programs and events that align with our 
strategic plan.  
Trustee Rogers inquired if there is a financial goal for programs.  
Director Scott replied that the goal is to think about who is going to come to the event. Will this 
program have good attendance or not.  
Chair Jacks stated that she was unhappy with the report and the information provided to the 
board.  
Vice Chair Moser asked for the staff costs for putting on programs in the future.  
Director Scott replied that we could do that in the future but would require Activity Based 
Costing process that involves Work Journaling and similar processes to determine that cost.  
Trustee Silver inquired if Our Center gave us the funding directly. 
Director Scott stated no, the costs were paid directly by Our Center.  
Trustee Rogers stated that before we start questioning the cost of the storytime we look at the 
costs for all of our programs.  
Director Scott stated that there was an audit of library programs that was conducted by the 
auditor and that information was sent to the library board.  
 
 
6b Tax Initiative Update by Director Jeff Scott [Non-Action Item]   
Director Scott provided an update on the Library Tax Initiative.  
Trustee Rogers suggested some changes to the reporting and how we communicated the 
information to the public. Not to refer to it as a tax, but an override. Also suggested having an 
elevator pitch for the trustee to use for reaching out to the public.  
Vice Chair Moser echoed Trustee Rogers comments and that the Director should provide 
updates and instruction on how the override should be discussed. 
Chair Jacks expressed her displeasure of the update.  
 

15



 
5b Review and Possible Revision of Library Board of Trustee Bylaws [For Possible Action] 
 
Chair Jacks led the discussion on the bylaws.  
Trustee Silver suggested that the attendance should reflect the zoom attendance.  
Chair Jacks suggested adding that the meetings can be conducted virtually. 
Chair Jacks mentioned changes she would like to see in November and received feedback from 
DA Kaplan 
DA Kaplan suggested that if there are further substantive edits, he suggests discussing them 
here and then bring them back at a future meeting.  
Chair Jacks discussed meeting locations and adding the Pledge of Allegiance to the bylaws. 
Chair Jacks clarified the strikethrough lines in the bylaws 
DA Kaplan clarified the terms served for trustees. 
Trustee Silver wanted clarification on trustees reaching out to political leaders.  
Trustee Rogers wanted to keep the language in but adjust it for clarification. 
Vice Chair Moser discussed concerned about library locations and having a place that is 
conducive for meetings.  
Trustee Silver stated that she is not concerned about library locations or safety at those 
meetings and feels that chambers are very far removed from the public. 
Trustee Rogers agreed with Trustee Silver’s assessment and stated that the locations work but 
keep chambers as an option if necessary. 
Chair Jacks stated that the library locations have improper recording devices. 
DA Kaplan expressed concerned about extensive discussion and changes to the bylaws that are 
not reflected in the agenda packet. Suggested getting a list ahead of time and bring it forward at 
a future meeting. 
Chair Jacks expressed concerned about the Chair and staff duties in putting the agenda 
together. Chair Jacks expressed changes she wanted on what constitutes a quorum.  
DA Kaplan clarified that a majority is a best way to keep it as is. 
Chair Jacks inquired about the public comments sections. DA Kaplan clarified that NRS requires 
two of three possible public comment periods (before, during action items, and after the 
meeting). 

 
 
5f Discussion and possible direction on Washoe County Library System policies including but not 
limited to all current, and new policies for prioritizing and standardizing with a schedule to 
review, update and consider new policies and what topics they might include. [Non-Action Item] 
  
Chair Jacks tabled this agenda item. 
 
5g Library Director Eval 
Trustee Silver suggested items to Washoe County HR, improve metrics and performance 
measures, have a more robust eval format. 
Vice Chair Moser agreed with Trustee Silver review of Director Eval and has other documents 
that could be used to improve the process. 

16



Trustee Silver suggested Washoe County HR to provide clear measurable performance 
standards.  
Trustee Rogers expressed need for a timeline.  
 
5d Trustee Manual 
 
Chair Jacks led discussion of Trustee Manual 
Vice Chair Moser suggested changes to Trustee Manual based on feedback from other 
libraries and agreed to work with Director Scott on updating the manual. 
 
6a Library Director Update by Director Jeff Scott [Non-Action Item]   
Director Scott updated the library board on library events since the last meeting. 
 
6c/6d Downtown Reno Library and Internet Library Report Tabled 
7 Staff Announcements 
8 Board Comments 
Trustee Rogers expressed concerned about the renewal of the library expansion fund tax and 
wanted to champion this initiative.  
 
Chair Jacks adjourned the meeting at 8:53 

 
 
 

17



ITEM 5a National Library Week Proclamation  

COVER PAGE 

18



19



Item 5b Washoe County Library Board of Trustees Bylaws 

COVER PAGE 

20



Washoe County Library Board of Trustees 

Bylaws 

 

The Board of Trustees of the Washoe County Library System, pursuant to the authority vested by 

Nevada Revised Statues 379.025, hereby establishes the following bylaws: 

 

I. Purpose  

The Washoe County Library Board of Trustees shall, consistent with provisions of 

applicable state and federal law, exercise the powers and duties granted pursuant to NRS 

379.025.  The Board shall endeavor to administer and manage the resources of the 

Washoe County Library System in a manner consistent with the public trust, the Library 

Mission Statement, and the Library Vision Statement. 

 

II. Organization and Membership 

A.  The name of the organization shall be “The Board of Trustees of the Washoe County 

Library System” 

 

B. Membership:   

1. The Board of Trustees will be comprised of five (5) members. 

2. Trustees will be appointed by the Washoe County Board of Commissioners. 

3. Trustees will meet the minimum requirements as determined by the Washoe 

County Board of Commissioners. 

4. Trustees will be appointed to serve a 4-year term, as provided in NRS 379.020. 

5. Trustees will be eligible to be appointed for no more than two full consecutive 

four-year terms. Any appointment for the remainder of a term of less than 2 

years will not count toward this limitation.  In the event a Trustee’s term 

expires, the Trustee shall continue to serve as Trustee until such time a 

replacement is appointed pursuant to NRS 379.020(1). Notwithstanding the 

term limitation set forth herein, nothing in this provision shall be construed to 

prohibit the reappointment of a trustee for additional terms to be served after 

a break of one term of non-service prior to re-appointment.   

6. Resignation:  If any Trustee resigns at any time, written notice must be 

provided to the Board of Trustees Chair and the Library Director.  Any such 

resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later 

date specified therein. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of 

such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

7. Removal:  The board of county commissioners may remove any trustee who 

fails, without cause, to attend three successive meetings of the trustees. 

21



7.  

 

C. Trustees are public officers as defined in NRS 281.005(1) and NRS 281A.160(1).  

Accordingly, Trustees are subject to the Ethics in Government Provisions codified in 

NRS 281A.010 et. seq.  Trustees shall comply with the Code of Ethical Standards of 

NRS 281A.400 et. seq. 

 

D. Duties of a Trustee: 

1. Regularly attend meetings in person and actively participate in such meetings 

and actions; 

2.   Review meeting materials prior to each meeting; 

3. Be attentive to the needs and concerns of library patrons, volunteers, library 

staff, library administration, county staff, county commissioners and the 

general public; 

4. Set policies governing the operation of the library system as appropriate; 

5. Hire and evaluate the job performance of the Library Director; 

6. Work with the Director, library staff and , community members, and political 

leaders to plan for the future of the library system; 

7. Acknowledge the annual budget for the library system, and monitor 

expenditures; 

8. Monitor and evaluate library effectiveness; and 

9. Advocate for the Washoe County Library System within the community and 

political organizations, as appropriate 

 

III. Officers 

A.  Chair  

1. Selection. 

a. The Chair will be elected by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees 

who are present at the meeting. 

b. The term will be for one-year at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees. 

c. Elections shall be held at the regular Board of Trustees meeting each 

June.  

2.  Duties.  The chair shall: 

a.   Preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees; 

b.   Execute all documents and actions authorized by the Board of 

 Trustees; 

c.   Call special meetings as warranted;         

d. Appoint committees; 

e. Serve as an ex-officio non-voting member of all committees; 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or
numbering

22



f. Work with the Library Director and staff; 

g. Review agendas and assist in scheduling meetings; 

h. Add or remove items on each meeting agenda; 

i. Draft correspondence as directed by the Board of Trustees; and 

j. Perform all duties associated with the office. 

 

B. Vice -Chair 

1. Selection 

a. The Vice-Chair will be elected by a majority vote of the Board of 

Trustees who are present at the meeting.  

b. The term will be for one year, at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees. 

c. Elections shall be held at the regular Board of Trustees meeting each 

June. 

d. In the event the Vice-Chair must assume the duties of Chair for the one-

year term because the Chair is no longer able to serve in that capacity, 

an election for a new Vice-Chair will be held at the next meeting 

following the succession. 

2. Duties. The Vice-Chair shall: 

a. In the event of the absence or disability of the Chair, or of a vacancy in 

the office, the Vice-Chair shall assume and perform all duties 

associated with that office.   In the event of an absence or short-term 

disability of the Chair, the Vice -Chair shall assume the duties of the 

Chair for the period of his/her absence or disability.  In the event the 

Chair is permanently vacated, the Vice -Chair shall assume the office of 

the Chair for the remainder of the vacated term. 

 

IV. Meetings 

A. Regular meetings:   The Board of Trustees will normally meet monthlyever other 

month, on the third Wednesday of each month.  The time of the meetings will be set 

at the discretion of the Chair of the Board of trustees.  The Chair shall have the 

authority to cancel a regularly scheduled meeting in the event it is determined, after 

consultation with the Library Director, that there is insufficient business to come 

before the Board or that other good cause exists to cancel the meeting.  

 

B. Meeting locations:  When possible, the Board of Trustees will normally hold regular 

meetings on a rotational basis at Washoe County Library locations.  A calendar of 

possible meeting locations will be provided annually to the Board of Trustees.  

Meetings may be held virtually at the Chair’s discretion pursuant to the requirements 

of NRS Chapter 241. 

23



 

C. Nevada Open Meeting Law:  All meetings of the Board are subject to the provisions of 

state and federal open meeting laws and shall be conducted in accordance with the 

applicable laws.  The Library Director shall be responsible for ensuring the proper 

public notice is made for each meeting of the Board.  Trustees should endeavor to 

refrain from discussing agenda items or actions by the Board outside of public 

meetings in groups that may constitute a quorum. 

 

D. Agendas:  The Director Chair shall ensure the preparation of the agenda for each 

Board meeting and the compliance with the applicable open meetings laws as set 

forth in NRS Chapter 241.  An item may be placed on the agenda at the request of any 

Trustee or by written request by any individual to the Director Chair 15 days prior to 

the scheduled meeting.  However, whether and/or when the item is actually placed 

on the agenda remains in the discretion of the Chair.  

 

E. Pertinent Materials:  The Director shall ensure that notices and 

informationalsupporting  materials pertinent to any agenda item for any Board 

meeting shall be distributedmade available to Trustees, Board legal counsel,  and the 

public in anyone with a written request of notification on file with the Board no later 

than 9 a.m. of the third working day before the meeting to ensure adequate time for 

review.  In addition, pertinent materials shall also be posted on the Board of Trustees 

web site no later than 9 a.m. of the third working day before a scheduled meeting.in 

accordance with the requirements set forth in the applicable open meeting laws (NRS 

Chapter 241). 241.020 section 3 

 

F. Quorum:  A minimum of three Trusteessimple majority of the membership of the 

Board of Trustees must be present to have a quorum.  If a vacancy occurs in the 

membership of the Board, the necessary quorum and number of votes necessary to 

take action on a matter is reduced as though the voting membership does not include 

the vacancy.  A majority vote of those present at the meeting is required on any action 

items on the agenda for said action to be of any legal effect. 

 

G. The Director, or his duly appointed representative, shall attend each meeting of the 

Board. 

 

H. Special meetings:  Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the 

Chair or upon the written request of any two Trustees. 

 

24



I. Order of Business:  To the extent possible, the order of business at any regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Board shall be: 

Call to order 

Roll call  

Public comment 

Review/approval of minutes 

Old business 

New business 

Presentations 

Reports 

Public comment  

Board comment 

Staff Announcements 

Adjournment 

 

J. Where consistent with state law, and not otherwise provided in these Rules of 

Procedure, the Washoe County Library Board of Trustees  may refer to the principles 

of the most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order for guidance in conducting its 

meetings. 

J.  

K. Committees:  Committees shall be created as needed by the Chair, shall have a specific 

purpose, shall report regularly as to progress in completing their charge, shall be 

subject to annual review as needed, and shall automatically dissolve upon the 

completion of their charge. 

 

L. Annual Bylaws Review: The bBylaws herein can be revised as needed by a majority 

vote of the Board of Trustees.  Any proposed revisions must be placed on an agenda 

and addressed in a public meeting in accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law.  

The bBylaws shall be reviewed and approved at least once every calendar 

yearannually. at the regular June meeting of the Board of Trustees, or as soon 

thereafter in the event reasonable grounds exist so that the Bylaws cannot be 

reviewed during the June meeting. 

 

DATED this 1st 19th day of July March 20202024 

 

WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 Amy Ghilieri 

 Frank Perez 

 Anne MedailleAl Rogers 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75",  No bullets or numbering

25



 Lea Moser 

Al Rogers 

Gianna Jacks 

Ann Silver 

    

 

These bylaws were presented to the Board on June March 1921, 20243 and were adopted. 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

             Amy GhilieriGianna Jacks, Chair 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

26



Item 5c and d 

Supporting documents for Drag Queen Story Hour 

Discussion and Budget Analysis 

COVER PAGE 

27



WASHOE COUNTY 
LIBRARY SYSTEM

DRAG QUEEN STORY TIME

28



Origin

History of Drag

• Goes back to Shakespeare in 

Western culture when men 

played the roles for women

• Popular in the United States as 

far back as 1880s

• William Dorsey Swann known for 

throwing drag balls in late 1800s

Modern use of Drag

• Popularity of Ru Paul’s Drag Race 

(started 2009 and now on Season 

14 still on the air)

• Drag Queen Story Time founded in 

2015

• The Blue's Clues Pride Parade

Sing-Along Ft. Nina West! 2021

• New York Times coverage of Drag 

Queen Story Time 2017

29

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=d4vHegf3WPU
https://www.nytimes.com/2017/05/19/style/drag-queen-story-hour-puts-the-rainbow-in-reading.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2017/05/19/style/drag-queen-story-hour-puts-the-rainbow-in-reading.html


Event Process

Youth Services and 

Library Events Team

• Program Proposal Form

• Any staff can propose a program, 

it is reviewed by the team, branch 

staff decide if they want to hold 

program 

• 2019 Sparks Library Staff proposed 

Drag Queen Story Time

Drag Queen Story Time 

Sparks Library July 20, 2019

• Drag Queens Aspen Meadows and 

Ginger Devine (the Reno News & 

Review Drag Queen of the Year in 

2015) 

• Over 800 patrons in attendance 

with multiple news crews and a 

large crowd outside Sparks Library

30



2019 Drag Queen Story Time

31



2019 Drag Queen Story Time

32



Drag Queen Storytime 2019

From The Nevada Independent Drag Queen Storytime 

Sparks Library July 20, 2019
“If anything, the calls to cancel the event 

likely brought more people to it. Lines to 

enter the story hour stretched past the 

library entrance and snaked onto the 

sidewalk. Library staff had to rotate parents 

and children in and out of the reading. And 

those who didn’t make it into the event still 

made a Saturday out of it, sitting at tables 
across the library, reading books to their 

children. According to the library’s gate 

count, about 800 people entered the library 

during the event.”

33

https://thenevadaindependent.com/article/at-drag-queen-story-hour-a-difference-between-getting-upset-online-and-showing-up-in-person


Virtual Drag Queen Storytime
2020/2021 Drag Queen Storytime goes Virtual

34

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ET0TS_UnLvM


2022 Drag Queen Story Time

35



2022 Drag Queen Story Time

“Sparks Library hosted two successful 

Drag Queen Story Time Events on 

Sunday, June 26, 2022, with special 

guest Miss Ginger Devine. A total of 58 

children and adults attended this fun 

event.  Miss Ginger read My Shadow is 

Pink by Scott Stuart, It's Okay to be a 
Unicorn by Jason Tharp, and Mary had 

a Little Glam by Tami Sauer. We 

danced with bubbles and sang If You're 

Fabulous and You Know It and The Hips 

of the Drag Queens go Swish, Swish, 

Swish. Everyone had an opportunity to 
draw outside with chalk, blow bubbles, 

and color some Pride themed coloring 

sheets.”

Librarian Report-Sparks Library

36



2022 Drag Queen Story Time
Librarian Report-Downtown Reno Library

“On Saturday, June 25, 2022, the 

Downtown Reno branch hosted 

Drag Queen Story Time, starring 

the fabulous Miss Ginger Devine.

There were 52 patrons in 

attendance, with the youngest 

being 10 weeks old! Everyone 

enjoyed Miss Ginger's book 

selections, her sense of humor, and 

her ability to give life to the books. 

She truly shines as an advocate for 

early literacy.”
37



Celebrate 
Diversity 2023

◦ Drag Story Hour a huge 

success at Downtown Reno, 

Sparks, and North Valleys 

Libraries

◦ North Valleys Library - 131 
attendees

◦ Downtown Reno Library - 105 
attendees

◦ Sparks Library - 350 attendees

◦ We thank our partners at Our 

Center for their support for this 

program
38



Celebrate Diversity

◦ Drag Story Hour at Downtown 

Reno, North Valleys, and Sparks 

Libraries had heavy attendance 

and a great deal of support.

39



Drag Queen Storytime Cost Analysis
▪ DQST is planned and marketed consistent 

with other programs, events, and storytimes 

at Washoe County Library. No additional 

funds are spent to market the program or 

plan the program.

▪ Six programs in 2023 resulted in 586 attendees

▪ Average Library Storytime is 30 attendees per 

program whereas DQST is almost 100 per 

program.

▪ Average Library Storytime to market, plan, 

and provide is $3 per attendee (cost 

estimate of $90 per program). With a higher 

attendance costs savings are realized that 

would cost us less than $1 per person for the 

same $90 of planning and marketing.

▪ Our Center provides volunteer 

support and coordination as well 

as amenities. They also paid for 

the DQST Presenters. Their 

costs incurred was $2,620.63.

▪ Lastly, additional security is 

required at these events as those 

who oppose the program 

attempt to disrupt and 

intimidate parents and children.

40



Drag Queen Story Time Benefits

Harper Keenan & Lil Miss Hot Mess (2020) Drag pedagogy: The playful practice of queer imagination in early childhood, Curriculum Inquiry, 50:5, 440-461, DOI: 
10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 (Jan 2021)
LINK: https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 
Research: Harper B. Keenan is an Assistant Professor in the Department of Curriculum and Pedagogy at the University of British Columbia.
Harris Kornstein is an assistant professor of Public & Applied Humanities in the College of Humanities at the University of Arizona.

Five interrelated elements of DQSH that offer early childhood educators a 

way into a sense of queer imagination: 

“Ultimately, the authors propose that 

“drag pedagogy” provides a 

performative approach to queer 

pedagogy that is not simply about LGBT 

lives but living queerly.”

• Play as Praxis

• Aesthetic Transformation

• Strategic Defiance

• Destigmatization of Shame

• Embodied Kinship

41

https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621


Drag Queen Story Time Benefits

Harper Keenan & Lil Miss Hot Mess (2020) Drag pedagogy: The playful practice of queer imagination in early childhood, Curriculum Inquiry, 50:5, 440-461, DOI: 
10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 (Jan 2021)
LINK: https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 
Research: Harper B. Keenan is an Assistant Professor in the Department of Curriculum and Pedagogy at the University of British Columbia.
Harris Kornstein is an assistant professor of Public & Applied Humanities in the College of Humanities at the University of Arizona.

• Queer Play: Play for the Sake of Play/Imagination

• Serving Looks: Unscripted and Unusual/We are all born 

naked and the rest is drag/Realness/ Leads to 

discussion/highlight the unusual/

• Strategic Defiance

• Humor and Shame: Humor and Stigma/Reading and 

Interpretation/Example Reading Everyone Poops/Singing 

Hips on the Drag Queen go Swish Swish Swish

• Beyond Empathy: Not Walking in Someone Else’s Shoes 

but your own/Finding Difference In Oneself

• Learning From Children: How can adult performers learn 

from children as well?/Reimagining and Healing Our 

Own Childhoods

• Drag Queens as superheroes using their powers for good

42

https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621


Drag Queen Story Hour: A Herstory

Harper Keenan & Lil Miss Hot Mess (2020) Drag pedagogy: The playful practice of queer imagination in early childhood, Curriculum Inquiry, 50:5, 440-461, DOI: 
10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 (Jan 2021)
LINK: https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621 
Research: Harper B. Keenan is an Assistant Professor in the Department of Curriculum and Pedagogy at the University of British Columbia.
Harris Kornstein is an assistant professor of Public & Applied Humanities in the College of Humanities at the University of Arizona.

DQSH grew from queer author Michelle Tea’s personal desire to connect her toddler 

with queer culture. As the outgoing Executive Director of the San Francisco literary 

non-profit RADAR Productions, Tea conceived of the programme in 2015, which was 

launched under the leadership of incoming Executive Director Juli Delgado Lopera 

and Managing Director Virgie Tovar. Soon after, DQSH was replicated by established 

organizations and in DIY-style events around the world. Most have taken place in 

libraries, schools, bookstores, and other community spaces. Readings have 

happened in dozens of locales, from major cities like New York, Mexico City, and 

Tokyo, to smaller ones like Cleveland, TN and San Marcos, TX (Drag Queen Story 

Hour, n.d.-b). Many coordinate under an incorporated non-profit organization, 
though others operate independently.

43

https://doi.org/10.1080/03626784.2020.1864621


Drag Queen Story Time

Our Vision ... is that all Washoe 
County residents benefit from the 
Library's support of literacy and 
self-education.

• In support of Intellectual Freedom: 
Ultimately it is each and every 
parent's/guardian's responsibility 
whether their child 
views/attends/reads/engages in a 
public library experience.

• It is not the responsibility of individual 
community members to decide what 
may or may not be 
appropriate/acceptable for other 
people's children. 

• Public libraries offer/provide the 
experience for people to engage, it is 
up individuals whether or not to attend.

Equity, Diversity, Inclusion: An 

Interpretation of the Library Bill of Rights:Our Mission ... is to connect 
people with information, ideas 
and experiences to support an 
enriched and engaged 
community, one person at a time.

44

https://www.ala.org/advocacy/intfreedom/librarybill/interpretations/EDI


Board Discussion

45



Item 5e Book Challenge Appeal 

COVER PAGE 

46



47



48



Citizen Request for 
Reconsideration of 
Library Materials –
Appeals
Debi Stears
Collection Development Manager



Library Board of Trustees Must Weigh
• Did WCLS follow its Collection Development Policy in the 

acquisition and placement of titles in question?

• Works in question, evaluated as a whole

• Careful review of the objection

• ALA Bill of Rights

• ALA Freedom to Read and Freedom to View Statements

• Guidelines on Intellectual Freedom



WCLS Collection Development Policy

Contract with 
our community

Adopted 2004 
Revised 2010

• What we add to 
collection

• Placement of items 
within collection

• Determining what to 
withdraw from 
collection

• Reconsideration of 
Materials



Collection Development 
Foundations

Meets the informational, 
education, cultural and 
recreational needs of Washoe 
County Library customers



Collection Development 
Foundations

The library supports the 
individual’s right to access ideas 
and information representing all 
points of view



Collection Development 
Foundations

The library provides a neutral 
environment in which individuals 
and their interests are brought 
together with the universe of 
ideas and information spanning 
the spectrum of knowledge and 
opinions.



Collection Development 
Foundations

The library recognizes that some materials 
may be controversial and that any given 
item may offend some.  Only the 
individual can define what materials are 
consistent with her/his own values.  
Individuals can apply those values to the 
use of library materials only for 
themselves.  Parents and legal guardians 
have the responsibility for monitoring their 
children’s use of library materials.



Collection Development 
Foundations

The library supports the individual’s 
right to access ideas and information 
representing all points of view…it 
welcomes and solicits suggestions, 
comments, and ideas about 
collection.



Seeking Community Input – 14% of 
purchases

• Purchase requests fill any gaps 
in collection

• More than 600 requests/month
• Interlibrary loan available for 

titles we don’t purchase



Selection Criteria
• Current and potential relevance to community needs

• Requests by the Public

• Suitability of subject and style for intended audience

• Attention by critics and expert reviewers

• Reputation and significance of author

• Cost

• Consideration of work as a whole

• Representation of diverse points of view

• Authenticity of history or social setting



Placement of Materials Within the 
Library Collection
• Use Dewey Decimal to divide materials by subject
• Professional catalogers place materials into proper subject 

areas and assign them to Adult, Juvenile, Young Adult, 
Reference, and other specific areas

• Reviews by professionals in the field and the librarians' 
expertise contribute to proper placement

• It is the responsibility of parents to monitor the materials 
their children borrow or use in the library



Placement of Materials Within the 
Library Collection
• Use Dewey Decimal to divide materials by subject
• Professional catalogers place materials into proper subject 

areas and assign them to Adult, Juvenile, Young Adult, 
Reference, and other specific areas

• Reviews by professionals in the field and the librarians' 
expertise contribute to proper placement



Reconsideration of Library Materials
• User submits form to the library
• Director responds to request in writing
• Library Board of Trustees will hear appeal of Library 

Director’s written response. 
• Final decision rests with LBOT



Reconsideration Process
• Phone challenger to explain process and timeline
• File report to ALA Office of Intellectual Freedom
• Read work in its entirety
• Compile professional reviews
• Conduct review of WCLS holdings in subject area to ensure plurality 

of viewpoints
• Purchase additional titles to provide additional perspectives on the 

topic, as available
• Investigate acquisition and circulation history
• Research holdings and placement at other libraries
• Report findings to Library Director

      



WCLS – Censorship Watch
• 4/16/23 FOIA request asking for number and titles of books “pulped 

from WCLS collections in each of the years 2019, 2020, 2021
• 5/17/23 Debi Stears makes presentation to LBOT explaining how we 

select titles for collection and deselection (weeding) process
• 6/27/23 FOIA request from County Commissioner stating they’d like 

to know why “inappropriate books” are located in the children’s 
section of the library

• 6/27/23 FOIA request for a list of all titles purchased for the library 
in the last year.

• 7/13/23 Request for how many times “Lawn Boy” has been checked 
out



WCLS – Censorship Watch…cont.
• 7/14/23 Request for how many copies of “Lawn Boy” the library 

owns
• 8/14/23 Request for list of every book requested for purchase by 

patrons for previous 12 months
• 8/15/23 Debi Stears presents to the Board of County Commission 

explaining how library titles are selected for collection
• August – October 2023 Washoe County Internal Audit on Book 

Procurement Process, presented to Audit committee 11/13/23
• 10.15/23 Library receives 13 book challenges from single patron in 

response to Banned Book Display
• 12/20/23 Wake Up Washoe County delivers 14 book challenges from 

9 individuals



Quiet Censorship Trend
“What are your neighbors hiding from you?” Tracked beginning 9/30/23

• Discovery of books hidden, 
defaced with hate speech, 
and damaged throughout 
library branches

• Targeting LGBTQ, Jewish, 
African American, and 
immigrant populations



Protecting children by relocating 
library materials to a different area



Request for 
Reconsideration
What must Library Trustees take into 
consideration?



As a trustee advocate, you will be a 
defender of intellectual freedom, and of an 
individual’s right to information…the response 
must be unequivocal in defense of 
intellectual freedom.  You must explain that 
the role of the library is to provide reference 
materials in response to the needs of all 
segments of the community and (when 
available) to provide information on all sides 
of a given issue.

Nevada Library Governance and 
Public Library Trustees from Nevada State 
Library and Archives



Sund v. City of Wichita Falls, Tex



U.S. District Court for 
the Northern District 
of Texas, 2000
Altman Resolution provides that with 300 library cardholder 
signatures, a title must be removed from the children’s 
collection and placed into the adult collection.



Court Ruling
If a parent wishes to prevent her child from reading a 
particular book, that parent can and should accompany 
the child to the library, and should not prevent all 
children in the community from gaining access to 
constitutionally protected materials. Where First 
Amendment rights are concerned, those seeking to 
restrict access to information should be forced to take 
affirmative steps to shield themselves from unwanted 
materials; the onus should not be on the general public 
to overcome barriers to their access to fully protected 
information



Thank you!



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



Item 6 a b 

Library Director Update 

Renew Washoe County Libraries Update 

COVER PAGE 

255



Library Director Update for April 2024 

Library in the News 

CELEBRATE NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK APRIL 7-13, 2024   

https://washoelife.washoecounty.gov/library-system/celebrate-national-library-week-april-7-13-2024/ 

KTVN: Celebrate National Library Worker Day 

https://www.2news.com/video/national-library-worker-day/video_a50ec1c4-4c59-5169-900c-
364061b3eeb7.html  

American Heart Association Press Release: Blood pressure cuffs available through the Washoe County 
Library System: New program helps combat hypertension in Washoe County (blood pressure cuffs now 
available for checkout at all libraries) 

https://newsroom.heart.org/local-news/blood-pressure-cuffs-available-through-the-washoe-county-
library-system  

WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY AND THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION PARTNER TO PROMOTE 
LIBRARIES WITH HEART PROGRAM IN WASHOE COUNTY 

https://washoelife.washoecounty.gov/library-system/washoe-county-library-and-the-american-heart-
association-partner-to-promote-libraries-with-heart-program-in-washoe-county/ 

KTVN: Libraries With Heart Program  

https://www.2news.com/news/libraries-with-heart-program/video_dac2a3ee-eaa9-5000-9c52-
0fb1d906479c.html  

RGJ: Washoe County Commission names former school librarian to library board: Tami Ruf one of 87 
who applied to be on board 

https://www.rgj.com/story/news/government/2024/03/22/washoe-county-commission-names-former-
school-librarian-to-library-board/73035264007/ 

KOLO TV: Washoe County Library's New Explorer Brochures 

https://www.kolotv.com/video/2024/03/20/washoe-county-librarys-new-explorer/ 

The Road Ahead Script: Library Transit (Featuring Vice Chair Lea Moser) (Brochures now available at 
libraries) 

https://www.kolotv.com/2024/02/07/road-ahead-script-library-transit/  

Librarian Superstar Mychal Threets stopped by to chat with our librarians at the Public Library 
Association Conference and say a few nice words about Washoe County Library System.  

https://x.com/WashoeLibrary/status/1777380948453249487  

 

256

https://washoelife.washoecounty.gov/library-system/celebrate-national-library-week-april-7-13-2024/
https://www.2news.com/video/national-library-worker-day/video_a50ec1c4-4c59-5169-900c-364061b3eeb7.html
https://www.2news.com/video/national-library-worker-day/video_a50ec1c4-4c59-5169-900c-364061b3eeb7.html
https://newsroom.heart.org/local-news/blood-pressure-cuffs-available-through-the-washoe-county-library-system
https://newsroom.heart.org/local-news/blood-pressure-cuffs-available-through-the-washoe-county-library-system
https://washoelife.washoecounty.gov/library-system/washoe-county-library-and-the-american-heart-association-partner-to-promote-libraries-with-heart-program-in-washoe-county/
https://washoelife.washoecounty.gov/library-system/washoe-county-library-and-the-american-heart-association-partner-to-promote-libraries-with-heart-program-in-washoe-county/
https://www.2news.com/news/libraries-with-heart-program/video_dac2a3ee-eaa9-5000-9c52-0fb1d906479c.html
https://www.2news.com/news/libraries-with-heart-program/video_dac2a3ee-eaa9-5000-9c52-0fb1d906479c.html
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/government/2024/03/22/washoe-county-commission-names-former-school-librarian-to-library-board/73035264007/
https://www.rgj.com/story/news/government/2024/03/22/washoe-county-commission-names-former-school-librarian-to-library-board/73035264007/
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2024/03/20/washoe-county-librarys-new-explorer/
https://www.kolotv.com/2024/02/07/road-ahead-script-library-transit/
https://x.com/WashoeLibrary/status/1777380948453249487


United Way of Northern Nevada and the Sierras with United Readers stopped by the Washoe County 
Library System to drop off cards of support for all of our Washoe Librarians! 

https://www.linkedin.com/posts/uwnns_americorps-northernnevada-library-ugcPost-
7180681978122285056-FoPQ?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop  

KOLO Reporter Rebecca Kitchen shared photos of her new baby. She is one of our first patrons to 
particpate in the My First Library Card program partnership with Washoe County Library and Renown. 
https://www.washoecountylibrary.us/services/babycard.php 
https://x.com/WashoeLibrary/status/1773440212632269095  

KOLO: Food Bank of Northern Nevada announces spring break kids cafe schedule 

https://www.kolotv.com/2024/03/19/food-bank-northern-nevada-announces-spring-break-kids-cafe-
schedule/  

KOLO 8 Book Club: Women's History Month Book Selections 

https://www.kolotv.com/video/2024/03/13/kolo-8-book-club-womens-history/ 

 

Washoe County Leadership Academy Tour 

On March 22, Library Director Jeff Scott led the Washoe County Leadership Academy on a tour of the 
library bookmobile, Downtown Reno Library, and gave a brief presentation on how the library serves our 
community.  

 

 

 

257

https://www.linkedin.com/posts/uwnns_americorps-northernnevada-library-ugcPost-7180681978122285056-FoPQ?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop
https://www.linkedin.com/posts/uwnns_americorps-northernnevada-library-ugcPost-7180681978122285056-FoPQ?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop
https://www.washoecountylibrary.us/services/babycard.php
https://x.com/WashoeLibrary/status/1773440212632269095
https://www.kolotv.com/2024/03/19/food-bank-northern-nevada-announces-spring-break-kids-cafe-schedule/
https://www.kolotv.com/2024/03/19/food-bank-northern-nevada-announces-spring-break-kids-cafe-schedule/
https://www.kolotv.com/video/2024/03/13/kolo-8-book-club-womens-history/


Bookmobile on Tour 

North Valleys Library Branch Manager Jonnica Bowen and Librarian Pam Larsen have taken the library 
bookmobile on tour with stop at Cold Springs, Sun Valley, North Valleys, South Valleys as well as local 
County Advisory Boards. We will have stops in Gerlach and at the County Complex in April.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

258



Renew Washoe County Libraries Executive Summary for Phase II 

Tax Override Summary 

On November 5th, 2024, Washoe County voters will decide whether to extend a 30-year tax dedicated to  

acquiring, constructing, improving, maintaining, and operating the Washoe County Library System. This  

is a renewal of a 30-year tax override, not a new tax. An allotment of 2 cents for every $100 of assessed  

property value goes directly to Washoe Libraries. This is not an additional tax on Washoe County citizens.  

Our goal is to maintain the award-winning, outstanding library service Washoe County residents have  

come to enjoy.  

Progress on Renewal 

In November, the Washoe County Library Board of Trustees received a Tax Override Plan entitled Renew  

Washoe County Libraries. This plan detailed the history of the override tax, what has been achieved so  

far, and plans for renewal by Washoe County Voters. During Phase I, we planned to emerge with  

information for the general public.  

 

Here are our accomplishments in Phase I: 

• Asked for $50,000 for support from Friends of Washoe County Library and they agreed to keep 
that amount in reserve for the purposes of the Renew Washoe County Libraries Initiative. 

• Friends of Washoe County Library contracted with Riley Sutton of Changing Dynamics. Changing 
Dynamics is a company with over 15 years of experience in Nevada politics and was vital in 
getting Washoe County School District WC-1 passed in 2016. 
https://www.changingdynamics.net/who-we-are/  

• Friends of Washoe County Library Contracted with This is Reno for paid advertising from June to  
October 2024 to promote the library. 

• Created Library Expansion Tax website: 
https://washoecountylibrary.us/about/expansionfund.php  

• Library Support Group Established 

• In conversation with PBS Reno for promotional spots for the library from June to October 2024.  

• Weekly meetings with the Library Marketing Team to discuss the plan's progress and next steps. 

We are now in Phase II. Here are our accomplishments and plans for this phase: 

In assessing our media reach, we are getting the word out about how wonderful our libraries are and this 
results in media expenditures on behalf of the library.  In December we received $36,000 worth of air 
time from various outlets as well as $18,000 in January. We have also received coverage in the Reno 
Gazette Journal, This Is Reno, Reno News and Review and other outlets. We also have 16 appearances a 
month on KUNR for the On the Shelf and On the Kids Shelf book talks. We also receive attention for our 

259

https://www.changingdynamics.net/who-we-are/
https://washoecountylibrary.us/about/expansionfund.php


regular newsletters and social media. It is likely to receive over $60,000 of media coverage so far this 
year.  

We are currently filming B-Roll footage for our advertisements through This Is Reno, PBS Reno, and social 
media outreach. Friends of Washoe County Library have paid This is Reno for their marketing support. 
PBS Reno is an In-Kind donation and will run our advertisements from May through October at no 
additional cost.  

I will attend upcoming branch level meetings to go over talking points and answer questions from the 
staff so that we can put our best foot forward and practice what we can say and what we cannot say (Yes 
there is a Library Tax Override Renewal upcoming in June, no we can’t tell you to vote for it).  

We are taking advantage of Bookmobile stops around the County and at CAB meetings. We introduce 
the Bookmobile and our plans and then talk about the upcoming Override Renewal. That has been 
received well by the community. We will expand our conversations at local service clubs and ask local 
movers and shakers for letters on what our local library means to them.  

Washoe County Library Question 

Shall the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe County be allowed to levy an ad valorem 

tax in the amount of up to $0.02 per $100 assess valuation for a period of 30 years to raise 

approximately $3,000,000 in fiscal year 2025-2026 and thereafter the amount generated by a levy 

of up to $0.02 per $100 assessed valuation against the then applicable assessed value of property 

in the County for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, equipping, operating, and 

maintaining library facilities for the County? 

  

Explanation: A "yes" vote would permit Washoe County to levy up to $0.02 per $100 assessed 

valuation for 30 years for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, equipping, 

operating, and maintaining library facilities for the county. 

 

260



Item 6c Spanish Springs Library Report 

COVER PAGE 

261



SPANISH SPRINGS LIBRARY

262



263



264



THANK YOU!

265


	15e05884-2734-4eba-95f8-7799cb841e10.pdf
	Slide 1: Washoe County Library system  Drag Queen Story time
	Slide 2: Origin
	Slide 3: Event Process
	Slide 4: 2019 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 5: 2019 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 6: Drag Queen Storytime 2019
	Slide 7: Virtual Drag Queen Storytime
	Slide 8: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 9: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 10: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 11: Celebrate Diversity 2023
	Slide 12: Celebrate Diversity
	Slide 13: Drag Queen Storytime Cost Analysis
	Slide 14: Drag Queen Story Time Benefits
	Slide 15: Drag Queen Story Time Benefits
	Slide 16: Drag Queen Story Hour: A Herstory 
	Slide 17: Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 18: Board Discussion

	e609a004-6a34-4743-9e2b-ade699f7f387.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4

	f763cd3c-eba5-4f85-82d4-e114e1b4c8ff.pdf
	Citizen Request for Reconsideration of Library Materials – Appeals
	Library Board of Trustees Must Weigh
	WCLS Collection Development Policy
	Collection Development Foundations
	Collection Development Foundations
	Collection Development Foundations
	Collection Development Foundations
	Collection Development Foundations
	Seeking Community Input – 14% of purchases
	Selection Criteria
	Placement of Materials Within the Library Collection
	Placement of Materials Within the Library Collection
	Reconsideration of Library Materials
	Reconsideration Process
	WCLS – Censorship Watch
	WCLS – Censorship Watch…cont.
	Quiet Censorship Trend
	Protecting children by relocating library materials to a different area
	Request for Reconsideration
	As a trustee advocate, you will be a defender of intellectual freedom, and of an individual’s right to information…the response must be unequivocal in defense of intellectual freedom.  You must explain that the role of the library is to provide reference materials in response to the needs of all segments of the community and (when available) to provide information on all sides of a given issue.
	Sund v. City of Wichita Falls, Tex
	U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas, 2000
	Court Ruling
	Thank you!

	2864e875-1666-4939-81b1-a6ec28502c45.pdf
	15e05884-2734-4eba-95f8-7799cb841e10.pdf
	Slide 1: Washoe County Library system  Drag Queen Story time
	Slide 2: Origin
	Slide 3: Event Process
	Slide 4: 2019 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 5: 2019 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 6: Drag Queen Storytime 2019
	Slide 7: Virtual Drag Queen Storytime
	Slide 8: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 9: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 10: 2022 Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 11: Celebrate Diversity 2023
	Slide 12: Celebrate Diversity
	Slide 13: Drag Queen Storytime Cost Analysis
	Slide 14: Drag Queen Story Time Benefits
	Slide 15: Drag Queen Story Time Benefits
	Slide 16: Drag Queen Story Hour: A Herstory 
	Slide 17: Drag Queen Story Time
	Slide 18: Board Discussion

	e609a004-6a34-4743-9e2b-ade699f7f387.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4



